
 

 

 
 
 

McHenry Public Library District 
Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

 
Tuesday, December 19, 2017  

7:00 p.m. 
2nd Floor Board Room 

 
Agenda 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER – Kathy Beaderstadt, President 
 
II.  ROLL CALL – Monica Leccese, Secretary 
 
III.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV.      CORRECTIONS OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
V.      PUBLIC COMMENT AND RECOGNITION OF VISISTORS 
 
VI.      CONSENT AGENDA FOR THIS MEETING (Action) 

SECRETARY'S REPORT – Monica Leccese, Secretary 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, November 12, 2017 
 
TREASURER'S REPORT – Delphine Grala, Treasurer 
Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through  
November 30, 2017 and Bill Reports for November/December 2017 
Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 
Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS 
 Thank you from B. Edminster to Nancy M. Kramer & Beverly N. Tychsen for donation in memory of 

Frances Mysker 
 TY from BE to Thomas & Beverly Tychsen “ “ “ “ “ Frances Mysker 
 TY from BE to Joanne & Steven Wilhelmy “ “ “ “ “ Frances Mysker 
 TY from BE to the Senate Republican Caucus & Staff “ “ “ “ “  Frances Mysker 
 TY from BE to Joellen Johnson “ “ “ “ “ Frances Mysker 
 TY from BE to Lisa Sims “ “ “ “ “Frances Mysker 
 TY from BE to Janet Daniels “ “ “ “ “ Frances Mysker 



 

 

 B. Edminster to Pamela Althoff—Announcement of donations made in memory of Frances Mysker 
 B. Edminster to Adam Lowrey—Invitation to Career Online High School Graduation (other such letters 

confidential pending response) 
 B. Edminster to Dawn Amponin— Memorial for  Leodegario L. Amponin, Sr. 
 B. Edminster to Emma Wyant—Memorial for  Kenneth L. Andrews 

   
VIII. LIBRARIAN'S REPORT 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or 
dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings 
Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the October 24, 2017 Executive 
Session Minutes. 

 
X. OLD BUSINESS 
 
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of the 2018 Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Application and the 
2016 Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Expenditures Report (Action) 

2. Reading and approval of Ordinance 2017/2018-11 “An Ordinance Adopting a Policy 
Prohibiting Sexual Harassment for the MPLD”, including policy (Exhibit A)  
(Action) 

3. Reading and approval of Resolution 2017/18-1(Action) 
4. Approval and Release of the FY 2016-2017 Audit (Action) 

 
XII. ANY AND ALL OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY PROPERLY 

COME BEFORE THE BOARD 
 
XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 
 

***Please note that upcoming board meeting day 
will be January 16, 2018*** 

 
 
 

Any person with a physical disability may contact the MPLD (815-385-0036) within 4 hours 
of any meeting date to request special access to any board meeting.  The MPLD will make all 
board meetings accessible to people with physical disabilities under the current ADA 
requirements. 



1 
 

 
MINUTES 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING 
 
Date:       November 21, 2017 
Time:       7:00 P.M. 
Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  
 
I. Call to Order: 

President Beaderstadt called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call: 
Roll was called and a quorum was established.   
In M. Leccese’s absence, J. Stone was appointed Secretary Pro Tem.  
 
Members Present:  Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey (arrived 7:45 p.m.), Delphine Grala, 
Charles Reilly, and Jill Stone 

 
Members Absent:   Monica Leccese and Bradley Schubert 

 
Also Present:  James Scholtz, Executive Director; Bill Edminster, Assistant Director; Debbie 
Gunness, Business Manager 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
IV. Corrections or Additions to the Agenda 

 
V. Public Comment and Recognition of Visitors 
 
VI. Consent Agenda for this meeting 

Secretary's Report – Jill Stone, Secretary Pro Tem 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, October 24, 2017 
Treasurer’s Report – Delphine Grala, Treasurer 
Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through October 31, 2017  
Bill Reports for October/November 2017 
Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 
Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 
 
The Board reviewed the regular board minutes, financial statements and bills.   
Reilly moved and Stone seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the public hearing and 
regular meeting for October 24, 2017, the monthly financial statements for the fiscal year 
through October 31, 2017, the Bill Reports for October/November 2017, and payment of the 
bills.   
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Grala, Reilly, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Carey, Leccese, Schubert 
Motion Passed 



2 
 

 
 

VII. Communications 
 McHenry County Historical Society to B. Edminster—award of organizational 

membership as appreciation to library 
 B. Edminster to McHenry County Historical Society—thank  you for award 

 
VIII. Librarian's Report 

 Scholtz reported that there was an article in the paper saying that Algonquin Area Public 
Library is undergoing an 8,000 square-foot addition to the main library, costing $6.7 
million.   The project will be paid for out of their reserves and a loan.   He also mentioned 
that Algonquin has a new library director. 

 Zach Terrill came to the Board meeting to invite the Board members to the December 8 
staff in-service for lunch. 

 There are two new members of the maintenance staff, replacing two who left. 
 Scholtz shared a chart that will appear in the next Preface that highlights library statistics. 
 Lesley Jakacki and Scholtz talked to the Landmark Commission, inviting them to develop 

displays in the library for Illinois’ Bicentennial next year. 
 Scholtz reported that Shaw Media decided not to give the library rights to digitize the 

Plaindealer issues that are under their copyright. At this time, we can digitize issues from 
1875 to 1922. Because of changes in copyright law, beginning in 2019, we can 
progressively digitize one year of the Plaindealer in each successive year. Therefore, we 
can digitize issues from 1923 in 2019, 1924 in 2020, etc. 

 Scholtz told the Board that patron Jim Mackie has just written a book, part of a series he 
has done, and the library will sponsor a book signing. 

 Edminster informed the Board that the date for the Career Online High School graduation 
listed in the Board Packet was changed and should be listed as February 18, 2018. 
 

IX. Executive Session 
To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal 
of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 
120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the July 18, 2017 Executive Session Minutes. 
The Board did not go into executive session. 

 
X. Old Business 

 Reilly requested that the topic of an auditorium for the library be put on the Board 
agenda in early 2018. Scholtz will ask Gillespie Design to investigate the 
feasibility and cost of building an auditorium. 

 Grala reported that in the course of investigating a meeting room for another 
group, she found that four local banks do not charge for using their meeting rooms. 
She suggested that we consider looking into lowering the price we charge. Scholtz 
responded that based on library surveys, libraries charge a wide range of prices to 
use their meeting rooms. The library uses the meeting room heavily and we do not 
go out of our way to increase use by outside groups. 

 
XI. New Business 

1. Approval and release of the October 24, 2017 Executive Session Minutes  
The Board did not go into executive session. 
 
 



3 
 

2. Potential discussion of BCBS health insurance plans for FY17/18 
Scholtz reports that we are still waiting for final numbers but that he anticipates we will 
go through with the plan approved by the Board. 

3. Inspection and approval of FY16/17 Audit done by Eder/Casella 
The Board reviewed the audit. Scholtz told the Board that the audit looks good. Next year, 
the library will need to do an audit of its IMRF responsibilities.  Gunness will contact the 
accountants to inquire on the entry “laundry receptacle” for a cost that seems excessive. 

4. Discussion concerning future board meeting dates 
Staff asked that the Board return its meeting date to the third Tuesday each month since 
the deadline for bills cannot be changed and the work-around is not working well.  
Reilly moved and Carey seconded a motion to change the January 2018 meeting date to 
the 16th and that meeting dates continue to be on the third Tuesday as originally 
scheduled.   
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Carey, Grala, Reilly, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Leccese, Schubert 
Motion Passed 

5. Policy addition regarding Staff Policies – Drug-free workplace and staff use/storage of 
bicycles, scooters 
These policies were tabled until the December or January meeting 

6. Requirements for FY2018-20 Per Capita Grant - Review of Chapter 12, Serving Our 

Public 3.0  (p. 44 – Safety) and Chapters 6-10 of Trustee Fact Book (these items are 
shared with you on Google drive: MPLD Board).  We will discuss/review over next 3-4 
board meetings. 
The Board reviewed Chapter 12, Serving Our Public 3.0 and decided that the library 
meets all the requirements on the checklist. The Board will review the other chapters of 
the Trustee Fact Book at future meetings. 

 
XII. Any and All Other Business Which May Properly Come Before the Board 

Edminster distributed Friends membership applications to encourage the Board members to 
join that group if they wished. 

 
XIII. Adjournment 

Reilly moved and Grala seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:32 p.m.   
Ayes: Beaderstadt, Carey, Grala, Reilly, Stone 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Leccese, Schubert 
Motion Passed 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

       
Jill Stone, Secretary Pro Tem 



MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

COMPILED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

November 30, 2017



McHenry Public Library District 4:38 PM
Balance Sheet 12/15/2017

As of November 30, 2017 Cash Basis
Nov 30, 17

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market

1060100 · MM - General - First Midwest 1,425,676.43
1060200 · MM - Spec Reserve-First Midwest 1,457,728.41
1060300 · MM - Grant & Gift-First Midwest 428,181.70

Total 1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market 3,311,586.54
1070100 · HSA/Building - First Midwest 366,012.47
1615100 · General Account - First Midwest 16,399.69
1625100 · Payroll Account - First Midwest 118,954.74
1635100 · Imprest Account - First Midwest 5,000.00
1045100 · PROPAY 2,672.16

Total Checking/Savings 3,820,625.60
Other Current Assets

1005100 · Petty Cash 800.00
1500200 · Due from General Fund 550,000.00

Total Other Current Assets 550,800.00
Total Current Assets 4,371,425.60

TOTAL ASSETS 4,371,425.60
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities
2500100 · Due to Special Reserve Fund 550,000.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 550,000.00
Total Current Liabilities 550,000.00

Total Liabilities 550,000.00
Equity

3010100 · Fund Balance - General 1,456,371.20
3010200 · Fund Balance - Special Reserve 1,748,470.21
3010300 · Fund Balance - Grants & Gifts 437,630.23
Net Income 178,953.96

Total Equity 3,821,425.60
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,371,425.60

 Page 2 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 4:40 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 12/15/2017
November 2017 Cash Basis

Nov 17
Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 33,192.45
6030100 · Interest Income - General 78.36
6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 38.86
6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 13.31
6050100 · Fines 4,275.17
6055100 · Referral/Collection Fees 20.00
6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 23.81
6070300 · General Fund Gifts 12.59
6105100 · Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmts 1,037.77
6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 85.00
6130100 · Misc Incom -General(Sales/Fees) 275.26
6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 248.83
6200100 · Over/Short (2.79)

Total Income 39,298.62
Gross Profit 39,298.62

Expense
8010100 · Adult Books 7,401.75
8020100 · Youth Books 3,981.71
8025100 · Professional Resources 45.00
8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 29.99
8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers (551.44)
8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 597.64
8050100 · Adult AV Materials 4,290.51
8060100 · Youth AV Materials 2,035.96
8080100 · Video Games 800.50
8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 1,449.29
8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 8,067.50
8120100 · Library Supplies 747.90
8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 1,619.68
8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 2,373.72
8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 3,309.02
8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 152.15
8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 4,777.12
8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 20.00
8310100 · CCS & Polaris Expenses 5,962.95
8320100 · Network Expenses 1,512.68
8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 742.71
8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 5,965.45
8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 300.00
8510100 · Printing 5,167.00
8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 90.00
8540100 · Postage 1,573.80
8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 1,686.07
8610100 · Electricity 3,269.75
8630100 · Telephone & Internet Services 871.07
8740100 · Building & Grounds 9,471.78
8760100 · Hospitality 897.56
8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 24.99

 Page 3 of 13



Nov 17
8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 304.00
8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 127.37
8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 1,854.99
8910100 · Salaries 132,019.62
8920100 · FICA/Medicare 9,657.13
8930100 · IMRF 14,786.51
8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 16,387.00
8960100 · Memberships & Dues 315.99
8970100 · Travel 200.06
8980100 · Meetings & Training 530.90
9060100 · Library Furnishings 598.79
9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 118,622.39

Total Expense 374,088.56
Net Income (334,789.94)

 Page 4 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 4:42 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Class 12/15/2017
July through November 2017 Cash Basis

100 General 
Fund

200 Special 
Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 
Gift Fund TOTAL

Income
6010100 · Property Taxes 1,544,206.93 0.00 0.00 1,544,206.93
6020200 · Developer Fees 0.00 58,576.00 0.00 58,576.00
6030100 · Interest Income - General 367.86 0.00 0.00 367.86
6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 0.00 213.25 0.00 213.25
6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 0.00 0.00 74.97 74.97
6035100 · Dividends 47.00 0.00 0.00 47.00
6040100 · Nonresident/Enhanced Cards 180.00 0.00 0.00 180.00
6050100 · Fines 23,401.00 0.00 0.00 23,401.00
6055100 · Referral/Collection Fees 90.00 0.00 0.00 90.00
6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 4,936.05 0.00 0.00 4,936.05
6070300 · General Fund Gifts 0.00 0.00 441.23 441.23
6105100 · Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmts 4,649.30 0.00 0.00 4,649.30
6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,115.00 0.00 0.00 2,115.00
6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 420.00 0.00 0.00 420.00
6130100 · Misc Incom -General(Sales/Fees) 1,895.76 0.00 0.00 1,895.76
6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,566.48 0.00 0.00 1,566.48
6200100 · Over/Short 31.30 0.00 0.00 31.30

Total Income 1,583,906.68 58,789.25 516.20 1,643,212.13
Gross Profit 1,583,906.68 58,789.25 516.20 1,643,212.13

Expense
8010100 · Adult Books 33,419.86 0.00 0.00 33,419.86
8020100 · Youth Books 16,301.64 0.00 0.00 16,301.64
8025100 · Professional Resources 4,278.60 0.00 0.00 4,278.60
8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 119.96 0.00 0.00 119.96
8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 12,723.11 0.00 0.00 12,723.11
8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 405.00 0.00 4,592.70 4,997.70
8050100 · Adult AV Materials 17,113.49 0.00 0.00 17,113.49
8060100 · Youth AV Materials 4,034.13 0.00 0.00 4,034.13
8080100 · Video Games 3,406.71 0.00 0.00 3,406.71
8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 21,649.00 0.00 0.00 21,649.00
8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 22,262.11 0.00 0.00 22,262.11
8120100 · Library Supplies 3,737.62 0.00 0.00 3,737.62
8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 8,776.41 0.00 0.00 8,776.41
8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 7,213.70 0.00 550.00 7,763.70
8145100 · Circulation Supplies 91.80 0.00 0.00 91.80
8147100 · Summer Reading Club 28.52 0.00 0.00 28.52
8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 10,273.00 0.00 0.00 10,273.00
8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 501.20 0.00 0.00 501.20
8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 21,331.41 0.00 0.00 21,331.41
8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 20.00 0.00 0.00 20.00
8310100 · CCS & Polaris Expenses 29,814.75 0.00 0.00 29,814.75
8320100 · Network Expenses 5,078.02 0.00 0.00 5,078.02
8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,713.55 0.00 0.00 3,713.55
8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 10,110.15 0.00 0.00 10,110.15
8420100 · Legal Services 517.00 0.00 0.00 517.00
8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00
8510100 · Printing 11,656.05 0.00 0.00 11,656.05

 Page 5 of 13



100 General 
Fund

200 Special 
Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 
Gift Fund TOTAL

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 1,279.20 0.00 0.00 1,279.20
8540100 · Postage 4,495.36 0.00 0.00 4,495.36
8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 2,081.62 0.00 0.00 2,081.62
8610100 · Electricity 11,215.07 0.00 0.00 11,215.07
8630100 · Telephone & Internet Services 4,171.94 0.00 0.00 4,171.94
8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,696.68 0.00 0.00 3,696.68
8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 22,032.00 0.00 0.00 22,032.00
8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,554.00 0.00 0.00 5,554.00
8740100 · Building & Grounds 21,236.06 0.00 0.00 21,236.06
8760100 · Hospitality 1,857.52 0.00 0.00 1,857.52
8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 181.62 0.00 0.00 181.62
8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 339.00 0.00 0.00 339.00
8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 0.00 127.37 127.37
8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 0.00 0.00 4,694.66 4,694.66
8910100 · Salaries 655,880.87 0.00 0.00 655,880.87
8920100 · FICA/Medicare 47,862.33 0.00 0.00 47,862.33
8930100 · IMRF 73,305.52 0.00 0.00 73,305.52
8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 163,454.55 0.00 0.00 163,454.55
8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 679.18 0.00 0.00 679.18
8960100 · Memberships & Dues 447.96 0.00 0.00 447.96
8970100 · Travel 1,151.36 0.00 0.00 1,151.36
8980100 · Meetings & Training 1,780.90 0.00 0.00 1,780.90
9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,367.07 0.00 0.00 1,367.07
9070100 · Library Equipment 329.52 0.00 0.00 329.52
9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 1,019.42 0.00 0.00 1,019.42
9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 179,697.90 0.00 0.00 179,697.90

Total Expense 1,454,293.44 0.00 9,964.73 1,464,258.17
Net Income 129,613.24 58,789.25 (9,448.53) 178,953.96

 Page 6 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 4:45 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/15/2017
July through November 2017 Cash Basis

Jul - Nov 17 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,544,206.93 3,180,653.29 (1,636,446.36) 48.55%
6020200 · Developer Fees 58,576.00 58,000.00 576.00 100.99%
6030100 · Interest Income - General 367.86 5,000.00 (4,632.14) 7.36%
6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 213.25 3,000.00 (2,786.75) 7.11%
6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 74.97 2,500.00 (2,425.03) 3.0%
6035100 · Dividends 47.00 500.00 (453.00) 9.4%
6040100 · Nonresident/Enhanced Cards 180.00 1,000.00 (820.00) 18.0%
6050100 · Fines 23,401.00 55,000.00 (31,599.00) 42.55%
6055100 · Referral/Collection Fees 90.00 1,000.00 (910.00) 9.0%
6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 4,936.05 17,000.00 (12,063.95) 29.04%
6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%
6070300 · General Fund Gifts 441.23 20,000.00 (19,558.77) 2.21%
6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 8,000.00 (8,000.00) 0.0%
6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 500,000.00 (500,000.00) 0.0%
6105100 · Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmts 4,649.30 13,500.00 (8,850.70) 34.44%
6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,115.00 4,200.00 (2,085.00) 50.36%
6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 420.00 1,000.00 (580.00) 42.0%
6130100 · Misc Incom -General(Sales/Fees) 1,895.76 25,000.00 (23,104.24) 7.58%
6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,566.48 6,000.00 (4,433.52) 26.11%
6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%
6200100 · Over/Short 31.30 0.00 31.30 100.0%
6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 1,643,212.13 4,063,246.72 (2,420,034.59) 40.44%
Gross Profit 1,643,212.13 4,063,246.72 (2,420,034.59) 40.44%

Expense
8010100 · Adult Books 33,419.86 94,000.00 (60,580.14) 35.55%
8020100 · Youth Books 16,301.64 59,000.00 (42,698.36) 27.63%
8025100 · Professional Resources 4,278.60 5,500.00 (1,221.40) 77.79%
8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 119.96 6,000.00 (5,880.04) 2.0%
8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 12,723.11 15,000.00 (2,276.89) 84.82%
8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 4,997.70 448,381.10 (443,383.40) 1.12%
8050100 · Adult AV Materials 17,113.49 53,000.00 (35,886.51) 32.29%
8060100 · Youth AV Materials 4,034.13 15,000.00 (10,965.87) 26.89%
8080100 · Video Games 3,406.71 12,500.00 (9,093.29) 27.25%
8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 21,649.00 55,500.00 (33,851.00) 39.01%
8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 22,262.11 80,000.00 (57,737.89) 27.83%
8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.00 200.00 (200.00) 0.0%
8120100 · Library Supplies 3,737.62 10,000.00 (6,262.38) 37.38%
8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 8,776.41 57,200.00 (48,423.59) 15.34%
8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%
8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 7,763.70 18,500.00 (10,736.30) 41.97%
8145100 · Circulation Supplies 91.80 25,000.00 (24,908.20) 0.37%
8147100 · Summer Reading Club 28.52 7,000.00 (6,971.48) 0.41%
8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 10,273.00 21,500.00 (11,227.00) 47.78%
8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 501.20 1,500.00 (998.80) 33.41%
8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 21,331.41 59,000.00 (37,668.59) 36.16%

 Page 7 of 13



Jul - Nov 17 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 20.00 500.00 (480.00) 4.0%
8310100 · CCS & Polaris Expenses 29,814.75 75,000.00 (45,185.25) 39.75%
8320100 · Network Expenses 5,078.02 25,000.00 (19,921.98) 20.31%
8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,713.55 10,000.00 (6,286.45) 37.14%
8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 10,110.15 22,000.00 (11,889.85) 45.96%
8420100 · Legal Services 517.00 1,500.00 (983.00) 34.47%
8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 600.00 5,000.00 (4,400.00) 12.0%
8440100 · In Service Honorarium 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
8510100 · Printing 11,656.05 34,000.00 (22,343.95) 34.28%
8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 1,279.20 3,000.00 (1,720.80) 42.64%
8540100 · Postage 4,495.36 14,000.00 (9,504.64) 32.11%
8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 2,081.62 8,500.00 (6,418.38) 24.49%
8610100 · Electricity 11,215.07 25,000.00 (13,784.93) 44.86%
8620100 · Gas 0.00 3,500.00 (3,500.00) 0.0%
8630100 · Telephone & Internet Services 4,171.94 10,500.00 (6,328.06) 39.73%
8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,696.68 5,400.00 (1,703.32) 68.46%
8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 22,032.00 31,500.00 (9,468.00) 69.94%
8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,554.00 5,500.00 54.00 100.98%
8740100 · Building & Grounds 21,236.06 54,000.00 (32,763.94) 39.33%
8760100 · Hospitality 1,857.52 10,000.00 (8,142.48) 18.58%
8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 181.62 700.00 (518.38) 25.95%
8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 339.00 4,000.00 (3,661.00) 8.48%
8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 127.37 32,628.34 (32,500.97) 0.39%
8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 4,694.66 0.00 4,694.66 100.0%
8910100 · Salaries 655,880.87 1,815,000.00 (1,159,119.13) 36.14%
8920100 · FICA/Medicare 47,862.33 140,000.00 (92,137.67) 34.19%
8930100 · IMRF 73,305.52 200,000.00 (126,694.48) 36.65%
8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 163,454.55 360,000.00 (196,545.45) 45.4%
8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 679.18 6,000.00 (5,320.82) 11.32%
8960100 · Memberships & Dues 447.96 8,000.00 (7,552.04) 5.6%
8970100 · Travel 1,151.36 9,000.00 (7,848.64) 12.79%
8980100 · Meetings & Training 1,780.90 5,000.00 (3,219.10) 35.62%
9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%
9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%
9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,367.07 35,000.00 (33,632.93) 3.91%
9070100 · Library Equipment 329.52 70,000.00 (69,670.48) 0.47%
9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 1,019.42 10,000.00 (8,980.58) 10.19%
9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 179,697.90 400,000.00 (220,302.10) 44.92%
9100100 · Transfer to Reserve Fund 0.00 500,000.00 (500,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 1,464,258.17 5,161,159.44 (3,696,901.27) 28.37%
Net Income 178,953.96 (1,097,912.72) 1,276,866.68 (16.3%)

 Page 8 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 4:48 PM
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/15/2017
July 1, 2017- November 30, 2017 - General Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Nov 17 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,544,206.93 3,180,653.29 (1,636,446.36) 48.55%
6030100 · Interest Income - General 367.86 5,000.00 (4,632.14) 7.36%
6035100 · Dividends 47.00 500.00 (453.00) 9.4%
6040100 · Nonresident/Enhanced Cards 180.00 1,000.00 (820.00) 18.0%
6050100 · Fines 23,401.00 55,000.00 (31,599.00) 42.55%
6055100 · Referral/Collection Fees 90.00 1,000.00 (910.00) 9.0%
6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 4,936.05 17,000.00 (12,063.95) 29.04%
6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 8,000.00 (8,000.00) 0.0%
6105100 · Cobra/Retiree Insurance Pmts 4,649.30 13,500.00 (8,850.70) 34.44%
6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,115.00 4,200.00 (2,085.00) 50.36%
6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 420.00 1,000.00 (580.00) 42.0%
6130100 · Misc Incom -General(Sales/Fees) 1,895.76 25,000.00 (23,104.24) 7.58%
6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,566.48 6,000.00 (4,433.52) 26.11%
6200100 · Over/Short 31.30 0.00 31.30 100.0%

Total Income 1,583,906.68 3,317,853.29 (1,733,946.61) 47.74%
Gross Profit 1,583,906.68 3,317,853.29 (1,733,946.61) 47.74%

Expense
8010100 · Adult Books 33,419.86 94,000.00 (60,580.14) 35.55%
8020100 · Youth Books 16,301.64 59,000.00 (42,698.36) 27.63%
8025100 · Professional Resources 4,278.60 5,500.00 (1,221.40) 77.79%
8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 119.96 6,000.00 (5,880.04) 2.0%
8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 12,723.11 15,000.00 (2,276.89) 84.82%
8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 405.00
8050100 · Adult AV Materials 17,113.49 53,000.00 (35,886.51) 32.29%
8060100 · Youth AV Materials 4,034.13 15,000.00 (10,965.87) 26.89%
8080100 · Video Games 3,406.71 12,500.00 (9,093.29) 27.25%
8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 21,649.00 55,500.00 (33,851.00) 39.01%
8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 22,262.11 80,000.00 (57,737.89) 27.83%
8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.00 200.00 (200.00) 0.0%
8120100 · Library Supplies 3,737.62 10,000.00 (6,262.38) 37.38%
8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 8,776.41 57,200.00 (48,423.59) 15.34%
8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%
8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 7,213.70 18,500.00 (11,286.30) 38.99%
8145100 · Circulation Supplies 91.80 25,000.00 (24,908.20) 0.37%
8147100 · Summer Reading Club 28.52 7,000.00 (6,971.48) 0.41%
8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 10,273.00 21,500.00 (11,227.00) 47.78%
8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 501.20 1,500.00 (998.80) 33.41%
8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 21,331.41 59,000.00 (37,668.59) 36.16%
8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 20.00 500.00 (480.00) 4.0%
8310100 · CCS & Polaris Expenses 29,814.75 75,000.00 (45,185.25) 39.75%
8320100 · Network Expenses 5,078.02 25,000.00 (19,921.98) 20.31%
8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,713.55 10,000.00 (6,286.45) 37.14%
8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 10,110.15 22,000.00 (11,889.85) 45.96%
8420100 · Legal Services 517.00 1,500.00 (983.00) 34.47%
8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 600.00 5,000.00 (4,400.00) 12.0%
8440100 · In Service Honorarium 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

 Page 9 of 13



Jul - Nov 17 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
8510100 · Printing 11,656.05 34,000.00 (22,343.95) 34.28%
8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 1,279.20 3,000.00 (1,720.80) 42.64%
8540100 · Postage 4,495.36 14,000.00 (9,504.64) 32.11%
8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 2,081.62 8,500.00 (6,418.38) 24.49%
8610100 · Electricity 11,215.07 25,000.00 (13,784.93) 44.86%
8620100 · Gas 0.00 3,500.00 (3,500.00) 0.0%
8630100 · Telephone & Internet Services 4,171.94 10,500.00 (6,328.06) 39.73%
8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,696.68 5,400.00 (1,703.32) 68.46%
8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 22,032.00 31,500.00 (9,468.00) 69.94%
8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,554.00 5,500.00 54.00 100.98%
8740100 · Building & Grounds 21,236.06 54,000.00 (32,763.94) 39.33%
8760100 · Hospitality 1,857.52 10,000.00 (8,142.48) 18.58%
8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 181.62 700.00 (518.38) 25.95%
8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 339.00 4,000.00 (3,661.00) 8.48%
8910100 · Salaries 655,880.87 1,815,000.00 (1,159,119.13) 36.14%
8920100 · FICA/Medicare 47,862.33 140,000.00 (92,137.67) 34.19%
8930100 · IMRF 73,305.52 200,000.00 (126,694.48) 36.65%
8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 163,454.55 360,000.00 (196,545.45) 45.4%
8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 679.18 6,000.00 (5,320.82) 11.32%
8960100 · Memberships & Dues 447.96 8,000.00 (7,552.04) 5.6%
8970100 · Travel 1,151.36 9,000.00 (7,848.64) 12.79%
8980100 · Meetings & Training 1,780.90 5,000.00 (3,219.10) 35.62%
9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,367.07 35,000.00 (33,632.93) 3.91%
9070100 · Library Equipment 329.52 70,000.00 (69,670.48) 0.47%
9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 1,019.42 10,000.00 (8,980.58) 10.19%
9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 179,697.90 400,000.00 (220,302.10) 44.92%
9100100 · Transfer to Reserve Fund 0.00 500,000.00 (500,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 1,454,293.44 4,505,150.00 (3,050,856.56) 32.28%
Net Income 129,613.24 (1,187,296.71) 1,316,909.95 (10.92%)

 Page 10 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 4:51 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/15/2017
July 1, 2017 - November 30, 2017 -Special Reserve Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Nov 17 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Income

6020200 · Developer Fees 58,576.00 58,000.00 576.00 100.99%
6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 213.25 3,000.00 (2,786.75) 7.11%
6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%
6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 500,000.00 (500,000.00) 0.0%
6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 58,789.25 588,000.00 (529,210.75) 10.0%
Gross Profit 58,789.25 588,000.00 (529,210.75) 10.0%

Expense
9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%
Net Income 58,789.25 438,000.00 (379,210.75) 13.42%

 Page 11 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 4:56 PM
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/15/2017
July 1, 2017 - November 30, 2017 - Grant and Gift Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Nov 17 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Income

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 74.97 2,500.00 (2,425.03) 3.0%
6070300 · General Fund Gifts 441.23 20,000.00 (19,558.77) 2.21%
6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%
6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 516.20 157,393.43 (156,877.23) 0.33%
Gross Profit 516.20 157,393.43 (156,877.23) 0.33%

Expense
8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 4,592.70 448,381.10 (443,788.40) 1.02%
8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 550.00
8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 127.37 32,628.34 (32,500.97) 0.39%
8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 4,694.66 0.00 4,694.66 100.0%
9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 9,964.73 506,009.44 (496,044.71) 1.97%
Net Income (9,448.53) (348,616.01) 339,167.48 2.71%

 Page 12 of 13



McHenry Public Library District
INTERIM CHECKS ISSUED - November 2017
(NOT INCLUDED ON BILL REPORT)

Account - Money Market    
VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

(no checks written on this account)
subtotal for account -$               

Account - General Fund
VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

 
subtotal for account -$               

Account - HSA/Building 
First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 1,700.00$      8940-100 11/07/17 EFT
First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 962.68$         8940-100 11/07/17 EFT
First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 962.68$         8940-100 11/21/17 EFT
mkSolutions Additional Capital Projects 100,702.00$  9090-100 11/10/17 1080

subtotal for account 102,627.36$  

Account  - Payroll    
VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK
IL Municipal Retirement Fund IMRF 21,675.99$    8930-100 11/02/17 EFT

subtotal for account 21,675.99$    

Account - Imprest    
VENDOR DESCRIPTION   AMOUNT  ACCT# DATE CHECK

 subtotal for account -$                  
 

GRAND TOTAL CHECKS ISSUED 124,303.35$  



























 McHenry Public Library District 

LIBRARIAN’S REPORT 

November 2017 
Administration 

 B. Edminster has begun monthly meetings with public service department managers to share 
information, discuss projects and problems, and generally improve communications between Admin 
and the departments. He continues to attend the biweekly Adult Services and Youth Services 
meetings.  

 B. Edminster is preparing the Per Capita Grant application that the Board will approve at their 
December 19 meeting. 

 B. Edminster, P. Strain, and Z. Terrill are preparing a COHS graduation ceremony for February 18, 
2018. 

 B. Edminster is the Lead for the In-House Polaris Migration committee. He will be assisting Technical 
Services in setting up a new Polaris Acquisitions module and attended two full-day Cataloging 
training session to prepare for that, 11/30-12/1. 

 B. Edminster serves on the In-Service Committee and assisted at the December in-service. For the 
first time in several years he did not appear as Santa Claus due to a tight agenda, 12/8. 

 B. Edminster met with D. Gunness to discuss the goals she had set in her last evaluation, 12/13. 
 B. Edminster appeared as Santa Claus in the English language Holiday Program, 12/13. He will 

appear at the Spanish-language program, 12/20. 
 B. Edminster represented the library at the Character Counts! Coalition meeting, 12/14. 
 B. Edminster met with Lesley Jakacki for six-month review of progress in meeting her goals set at her 

performance evaluation, 12/14. 
 He met with P. Strain for a monthly meeting that included setting personal goals for her position as 

Adult Services manager, 12/14. 
 B. Edminster ran the Classic Book Discussion of Charlotte’s Web by E.B. White, 12/18. 
 B. Edminster led a training session for Public Services managers on Polaris’s product LEAP, 12/19.   

 
Adult Services 

 Z. Terrill and P. Strain PS/ZT attended ALA’s Director Bootcamp series, which consisted of three 90 
minute webinars. 

 D. Gaudio helped a patron who was looking for a DVD on a religious leader from the 1500’s, who had 
stomach troubles, and talked about the evils of processed sugarcane. Thinking she had the wrong 
time period, I asked if he was Wilberforce. It was, and I located the movie Amazing Grace for her.  

 A patron asked E. Janas for help finding books/magazines on figure drawing which only depicted the 
sketches of faces and models without “how-to” instructions.  

 After receiving complaints about noise carrying into the study rooms during the Free Movies @ Your 
Library programs, we used the Meeting Room divider to cut the space in half so we could lower the 
volume while still accommodating the number of attendees. Success! 

 K. Lopez weeded Large Print Fiction A – Griffin and shifted accordingly. 
 T. O’Toole answered a patron’s question about which four presidents served as vice-presidents and 

also in Congress. 
 
Building Services 

 Building Services has two new employees Isaac Martinez and Greg Pease. We have covered 
chemical use procedures, cleaning procedures, floor care, PM schedules, Building Services Website, 
Snow Equipment including truck and plow, snow removal procedures, work orders, computer training 
and Forklift training. 

 HVAC preventive maintenance was completed by Mechanical Inc. for the winter season. 



 New employee doors add user friendly access and security with individual codes per employee. 

Circulation 
 S. Willis reports a total of 144 expired holds pulled in November 
 B. Majka attended mkSolutions conference call  11/1 
 S. Willis and L. Horist viewed the Simply Reports webinar  11/1 
 B Majka attended Train the Trainer session 11/8 
 B Majka attended Management Team Meeting  11/14 
 S. Willis, L. Rex, L. Horist attended CCS All-Staff webinar  11/15 
 B. Majka, L. Horist attended In-House Polaris Migration Team Meeting 11/21 

 
 
Human Resources 

  
 . 

 
Public Relations  

 Designed Jan/Feb Preface library newsletter and sent to printer for December 8 delivery. 
 Promoted upcoming events via various media: website, e-news blasts, indoor/outdoor electronic 
signage, press releases, social media. 
 Participated in Gale Analytics On Demand webinar with Bill to learn about using their data to send 
targeted mailings. 
 Attended Department Heads meeting 
 Attended Sunshine Committee meeting 
 Helped with monthly birthday celebration (purchased treats; made sign) 
 I got a call from a friend of mine that works in the City’s Building Dept. He asked if the library would 
like some old building code books for our local history collection. I asked Thomas Hillier, our 
genealogy/local history librarian if he was interested, and he said yes. We ended up putting some of 
them in our collection in case residents ever wanted to look back at older building codes. 
 
 

Technical Services   
 The Technical Services department created a department mission statement: 

We provide qualitative and cooperative preparation and maintenance of the physical 
collection and the catalog metadata through working with MPLD selectors and staff in all 
departments, striving for better communication and prompt delivery of all items. 
Our motto: Quality and cooperation 

 K. Milfajt participated in the mkSolutions conference call, 11/1. 
 K. Kimbrel and D. Lavin attended the Polaris Item Data Testing meeting, facilitated by K. Milfajt, 11/8. 
 D. Lavin, K. Meadows, and K. Walker attended Polaris Leap introduction, conducted by K. Milfajt, 

11/10. 
 K. Milfajt facilitated the Contemporary Book Group’s discussion of their best reads of 2017, 11/13. 
 K. Milfajt facilitated the Management Team Meeting, 11/14. 
 K. Walker facilitated the Dungeons and Dragons Program, 11/14. 
 K. Milfajt attended the CCS All Staff webinar, 11/15. 
 K. Kimbrel, D. Lavin, K. Meadows, K. Milfajt, and K. Walker attended the TS Department Meeting, 

11/17. 
 K. Milfajt participated in the In-House Polaris Migration Team Meeting, 11/21. 



 In November we tagged 5917 items for RFID, including 4250 items retrospectively and 1667 new and 
mended items.  We are 11% through the collection. 

 K. Kimbrel, D. Lavin and K. Milfajt work on data testing for the migration to Polaris, which is impacting 
department output. 

 
Technology 

  

Youth Services 
 C. Bergan co-authored a RAILS Mutlitype Library Grant with Jason Erber of Riverwood Elementary 

School. They are asking for funding for a “Walking Classroom” which are MP3 devices with 
curriculum content preloaded on them so kids can listen to a lesson while moving around inside and 
out of the classroom.  We should find out in the next few months if the grant is going to be funded.  

 N. Cogswell and K. Storlie have been keeping the YS department’s displays up-dated with a variety 
of interesting themes like: “Dig In! To Archeology” ,  “I Mustache You to Read These 
Books”(Movember, YA Titles with faces to put paper mustaches on), Turkey Interactive Desk Display. 

 K. Gerold was busy this month learning the ropes of the many storytimes she will be leading and 
meeting many of the families that attend our programs. 

 E. Wyant attended Anderson Bookstore’s YA Literature Conference and sat in on panels regarding 
trends in Science Fiction and Diversity literature. She also got to meet a few YA authors too.  

 G. Doolan has been working with local preschools to display students artwork at the library. This has 
been a great way to bring families into the library and liven up the preschool area.  

 J. Velasquez hosted a program getting kids excited for the upcoming Coco movie.  The movie 
focusing on Mexican culture and they created papel picado decorations and listened to music 
performed by students in the Free Guitars for Future Stars program.  

 L. Jakacki attended a three part webinar entitled “ALA’s Director Bootcamp. 
 

 Statistics and Highlights Narrative 
Legend – ABk – Adult Books; JBk – Children’s Books; PBk – Paperback Books; AudBk – Audio books; JAudBk – 
Children’s Audio books; ILL – Interlibrary loan; Vid/DVD – Videos/DVDs; JVid/DVD – Children’s Videos/DVDs; Oth - 
Other 
The TS Dept. added 2153 items (+50%) and withdrew 436 (-70%) compared with October 2016.  TS has 
been concentrating on RFID tagging new items (1501 items processed).  Staff also mended 693 items  
(-13%).   Overall circulation increased by (+5%) from the previous year/month and we were open ½ day less 
than last year (28 compared to 28.5). Many areas saw increases: ADbk (+18%); Jbk +10%), AAud (+79%).  
Both holds and renewals decreased (-1 and -3%, respectively).  Total circulation 46,665 compared with 
44,254 (+5%) with an ave. of 1667 per day.  Patron traffic was down about (-5%) to 14,548 which only 
makes the increase in circulation more spectacular – less people taking more materials out.  Also our 
eMagazine/Zinio was at (+2%) with Hoopla up (+43%).  Digital downloads also increased (+13%).   
 
 
 
Upcoming Events and Projects 

 IL Bicentennial – committee will continue to meet and develop monthly themed programs 
commemorating the state’s 200th birthday. (L. Jakacki met with Landmark Commission to enlist their 
help) 

 Polaris training continues as well as RFID tagging of new materials/retrospective tagging.  Installation 
of RFID equipment May 2018. 

 
 



EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES  
MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
 

 
 
 

Date: October 24, 2017  
Time: 7:09 p.m. 
Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  

 
 
 

I. Call to Order: 
 

Members Present:  Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, Charles 
Reilly, Bradley Schubert, and Jill Stone 

  
Members Absent:  None 

 
 

During Executive Session, the Board discussed the appointment, employment, compensation, 
discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with 
the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the July 18, 2017 
Executive Session Minutes.  
 
No action was taken during Executive Session. 

 
 
        Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
        ____________________________________ 
        Monica Leccese, Secretary  
 
 
 































 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
 

JUNE 30, 2017 



 

 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 
    PAGE 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
  Statement of Net Position 8 
 
  Statement of Activities 9 
 
 Fund Financial Statements 
 
  Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 10 
 
  Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 11 
 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – 
   Governmental Funds 12 
 
  Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
   in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 13 
 
 Notes to Financial Statements 14 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund – Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s 26 
           Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund – Schedule of Employer Contribution  27 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 28 
  Budget and Actual – General Fund  
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 29 
  Budget and Actual – Special Revenue Fund – Grant and Gift Fund  
 
 Notes to Required Supplementary Information 30 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – 
  Budget and Actual – Capital Projects Fund – Special Reserve Fund 31



 

Page 1 

 
  
 
 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
McHenry Public Library District 
McHenry, Illinois 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 

 
MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Library’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions.



 

 

Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the McHenry Public Library District as of June 30, 2017, 
and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the employer’s net pension 
liability and related ratios, schedule of employer contribution, and budgetary comparison 
information on pages 3 through 7 and 26 through 30 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Library’s basic financial statements.  The supplemental information, as 
listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements.  
 
The supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, the supplemental information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 

  
  
 EDER, CASELLA & CO. 
 Certified Public Accountants 
 
McHenry, Illinois 
November 27, 2017 
 
Page 2 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



 

Page 3 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 
As management of McHenry Public Library District (Library), we offer readers of the Library’s 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Library for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Library exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $8,176,626 (net position).  
Unrestricted net position, which are assets that may be used to meet the Library’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors, are $1,341,815 at June 30, 2017. 
 
The Library’s total net position decreased by $221,408 due to a decrease in current year activities. 
 
As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Library’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $2,161,035, a decrease of $60,543 in comparison with the prior year.  Of 
this, $121,106 is nonspendable prepaid expenses, $2,244,180 is committed for capital project 
expenditures, and $(204,251) is available for spending at the Library’s discretion (unassigned 
fund balance). 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$(204,251). 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Library’s basic financial 
statements.  The Library’s basic financial statements comprise three components:  1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Library’s finances, in a manner similar 
to a private-sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Library’s assets and deferred 
outflows of resources, less its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference 
reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the Library is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Library’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation 
leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements present functions of the Library that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities).  The 
Library does not have any functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their 
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of 



 

Page 4 

the Library include general government and library operations.  The government-wide financial 
statements can be found on pages 8 and 9 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Library, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Library are 
governmental funds. 
 
Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Library’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation 
to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The Library maintains three individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately 
in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Special Reserve Fund, and 
Grant and Gift Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. 
   
The Library adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, Special Reserve Fund, 
and Grant and Gift Fund.  A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each of these 
funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 13 of this 
report. 
 
Notes To the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential 
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 14 through 25 of this report. 
 
Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Library’s progress 
in meeting its obligation to provide as fully adequate as possible library services to its residents.  
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 25 through 29 of this report. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position.  In the case of the Library, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources by $8,176,626 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.  By 
far the largest portion of the Library’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, fine art, building, equipment and furnishings, and collection) less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The Library uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
 
A condensed version of the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2017 and 2016 follows: 



 

Page 5 

2017 2016

Assets

Current and Other Assets 5,345,233$      5,511,058$      

Capital Assets 6,834,811        6,865,494        

Total Assets 12,180,044$    12,376,552$    

Deferred Outflows of Resources

   Pension Expense/Revenue - IMRF 475,517$         505,909$         

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 475,517$         505,909$         

Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 1,294,737$      1,194,947$      

Current Liabilities 585,352           140,628           

Total Liabilities 1,880,089$      1,335,575$      

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 3,148,846$      3,148,852$      

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,148,846$      3,148,852$      

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,834,811$      6,865,494$      

Unrestricted/(Deficit) 1,341,815        1,532,540        

Total Net Position 8,176,626$      8,398,034$      

Governmental Activities

McHenry Public Library District's Net Position

 
The balance of unrestricted net position, $1,341,815, may be used to meet the Library’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Library is able to report positive balances in all categories 
of net position. 
 
The Library’s net position decreased by $221,408 during the current fiscal year. 
 
Governmental Activities - Governmental activities decreased the Library’s net position by 
$221,408.  Key elements of this decrease are as follows: 

2017 2016

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services 73,833$           69,318$           

Operating Grants and Contributions 49,713             68,903             

General Revenues

Property Taxes 3,173,266        3,173,228        

Impact Fees 4,487               -                  

Developer Fees 54,188             14,921             

Investment Earnings 1,447               1,481               

  Capital Assets (23,551)           (24,235)           

Other 24,390             45,699             

Total Revenues 3,357,773$      3,349,315$      

Expenses

General Government 79,919$           85,638$           

Library Operations 3,499,262        3,290,327        

Total Expenses 3,579,181$      3,375,965$      

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position (221,408)$       (26,650)$         

Net Position - Beginning 8,398,034        8,393,453        

Net Position Adjustment -                  31,231             

Net Position - Ending 8,176,626$      8,398,034$      

Governmental Activities

McHenry Public Library District's Change in Net Position



 

Page 6 

Total revenues increased $8,458 from the prior year, which is consistent with the prior year. 
 
Total expenses increased $203,216 from the prior year, which was mainly attributable to the 
increase in Library Operations of $208,935, which included an increase in personnel expense of 
$118,446. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE LIBRARY’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the Library uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds - The focus of the Library’s governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful 
in assessing the Library’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may 
serve as a useful measure of the Library’s net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Library’s governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $2,161,035. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Library.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $(204,251).  The total fund balance of the 
Library’s General Fund decreased by $131,756 during the current fiscal year.  The decrease in 
fund balance is primarily due to an increase in personnel expenditures. 
 
The Special Reserve Fund has a total fund balance of $1,806,798.  The net increase in fund 
balance during the current year in the Special Reserve Fund was $59,342. 
 
The Grant and Gift Fund has a total fund balance of $449,585.  The net increase in fund balance 
during the current year in the Grant and Gift Fund was $11,871. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The Library did not amend its budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017; therefore, the 
amounts shown as original and final budget are the same. 
 
Significant differences between the budget and the actual revenues and expenditures are 
summarized as follows: 
 
 The difference between the estimated revenues and the actual revenues was $42,266 

(unfavorable) and was primarily attributable to less than expected fines, interest, and other 
income. 
 

 The difference between the estimated expenditures and the actual expenditures was 
$433,108 (favorable), and was primarily attributable to less than expected salaries, 
professional services, and capital outlay. 

 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets - The Library’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of 
June 30, 2017 amounts to $6,834,811 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in 
capital assets includes land, parking lot, fine art, building, landscaping, equipment and 
furnishings, and collection.  The total decrease in the Library’s investment in capital assets for the 
current fiscal year was $30,683. 
 
The following are significant capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017:



 

Page 7 

 Solar Panel Project - $54,754 
 
 RFID Equipment- $97,109 

 
The following table presents a summary of capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016: 
 

2017 2016

Land 1,245,836$      1,245,836$      

Fine Art 18,600             18,600             

Parking Lot 255,491 272,998           

Building 3,057,828 3,102,864

Landscaping 10,081 10,813

Equipment and Furnishings 578,105 540,921

Collection 1,668,870 1,673,462

Total 6,834,811$      6,865,494$      

McHenry Public Library District's Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

(net of depreciation)

 
Additional information on the Library’s capital assets can be found in note 4 on pages 18 and 19 
of this report. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
The equalized assessed valuation (EAV) for the Library for 2016 is $899,541,636.  This 
represents an EAV increase of $66,220,804 (7.95%) from the prior year.  This increase will affect 
the calculation of the Library’s property tax revenue and was considered in preparing the Library’s 
budget for the 2018 fiscal year. 
 
Next year’s budget (fiscal year 2017/18) tax revenue is expected to be higher than the previous 
year with a upward trend in EAV (see above) and is expected to continue to increase for the next 
year budget cycle. 
 
Next year’s budget (fiscal year 2017/18) expenses are expected to decrease due to major capital 
projects being completed in fiscal year 2017.  
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of McHenry Public Library District’s 
finances for all those with an interest in the Library’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Executive Director, McHenry Public Library District, 809 North Front Street, 
McHenry, IL  60050-5578.



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Governmental
Activities

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,642,471$    
Property Taxes Receivable, Net of Allowance of $31,800 1,523,615      
Annexation Impact Fees 4,200             
Developer Donations Receivable, Net of Allowance of $0 53,841           
Prepaid Items 121,106         
Capital Assets (Note 4)

Land 1,245,836      
Fine Art 18,600           
Depreciable Building, Equipment and Furnishings, and

Collection, Net of Depreciation 5,570,375      
TOTAL ASSETS 12,180,044$  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Pension Expense/Revenue - IMRF 475,517$       

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 475,517$       

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 4,212$           
Accrued Payroll 29,045           
Accrued Payroll Taxes 2,095             

Non-Current Liabilities
Due in More Than One Year 1,294,737

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,330,089$    

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 3,148,846$    

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,148,846$    

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,834,811$    
Unrestricted/(Deficit) 1,341,815      

TOTAL NET POSITION 8,176,626$    

JUNE 30, 2017

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 8
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Operating
Charges For Grants and Governmental

Expenses Services Contributions Activities
Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities
General Government 79,919$         -$               -$               (79,919)$        
Library Operations 3,499,262 73,833           49,713           (3,375,716)     

3,579,181$   73,833$        49,713$        (3,455,635)$   

General Revenues
Taxes

Property Taxes 3,173,266$    
Annexation Impact Fees 4,487             
Developer Fees 54,188           
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 1,447             
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets (23,551)          
Other Income 24,390           

Total General Revenues 3,234,227$    

Change in Net Position (221,408)$      

Net Position - Beginning of Year 8,398,034

Net Position - End of Year 8,176,626$    

Program Revenues
Changes in
Net Position

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Page 9
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Special Total
General Reserve Grant and Gift Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,006,084$   1,198,757$   437,630$      3,642,471$   
Property Taxes Receivable, Net of 

Allowance of $31,807 1,523,615     -                -                1,523,615     
   Annexation Impact Fees Receivable 4,200            4,200            

Developer Donations Receivable, Net
of Allowance of $0 -                53,841          -                53,841          

Prepaid Items 108,903 -                12,203          121,106        
Due From Other Funds 550,000        550,000        

TOTAL ASSETS 3,638,602$  1,806,798$  449,833$      5,895,233$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 3,964$          -$              248$             4,212$          
Accrued Payroll 29,045 -                -                29,045          
Accrued Payroll Taxes 2,095 -                -                2,095            
Due to Other Funds 550,000        550,000        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 585,104$      -$              248$             585,352$      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 3,148,846$   -$              -$              3,148,846$   

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,148,846$   -$              -$              3,148,846$   

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Prepaid Items 108,903$      -$              12,203$        121,106$      
Committed

Capital Projects -                1,806,798     437,382        2,244,180     
Unassigned (204,251)       -                -                (204,251)       

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (95,348)$       1,806,798$   449,585$      2,161,035$   

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 3,638,602$  1,806,798$  449,833$      5,895,233$  

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 10
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 2,161,035$   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Capital Assets 10,299,177$ 
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (3,464,366)    

6,834,811     
Deferred pension costs in governmental activities are not financial 
 resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Pension Expense/Revenue - IMRF 475,517        

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Compensated Absences (48,280)$       
Net Pension Liability - IMRF -                    

(48,280)         

Net Position of Governmental Activities 9,423,083$   

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 11
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Special Total
General Reserve Grant and Gift Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES

Property Taxes 3,173,266$   -$              -$              3,173,266$   
Annexation Impact Fees -                4,487            -                4,487            
Developer Fees -                54,188          -                54,188          
Fines 50,314          -                -                50,314          
Interest 597               667               183               1,447            
Photocopier Income 16,088          -                -                16,088          
Program Fees/Miscellaneous Fees 3,055            -                -                3,055            
Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 19,625          -                -                19,625          
Meeting Room Fees 935               -                -                935               
Lost or Damaged Materials 3,151            -                -                3,151            
Dividends 329               -                -                329               
Collection Agency Fees 290               -                -                290               
Other Income 4,436            -                -                4,436            
Gifts and Donations -                -                17,320          17,320          
Per Capita Grant -                -                32,393          32,393          

3,272,086$   59,342$        49,896$        3,381,324$   
EXPENDITURES

Current
General Government 79,919$        -$              -$              79,919$        
Library Operations 2,578,131     -                38,025          2,616,156     

Capital Outlay 745,792        -                -                745,792        
3,403,842$   -$              38,025$        3,441,867$   

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (131,756)$     59,342$        11,871$        (60,543)$       

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2016 36,408          1,747,456     437,714        2,221,578     

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2017 (95,348)$      1,806,798$  449,585$     2,161,035$   

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 12
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (60,543)$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of these assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlay
exceeds depreciation expense in the current period.

Capital Outlays 535,957$      
Depreciation Expense (543,089)       

(7,132)           
Some expenses in the Statement of Activities do not require the use

of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Gain/(Loss) on the Disposal of Capital Assets (23,551)$       
Compensated Absences (4,895)
Pension Expense (308,795)

(337,241)       
Employer Pension Contributions are expensed in the fund financial
  statements but treated as a reduction in the Net Pension Liability

on the government-wide financial statements. 183,508        

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (221,408)$     

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page 13
The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



 

Page 14 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
McHenry Public Library District (Library) is a public library organized under Chapter 75 of the 
Illinois Compiled Statutes.  It operates under the direction of a Board of Trustees, which has 
responsibility and control over all activities related to the Library within the district, and provides 
library facilities in an area generally defined by the City of McHenry. 
 
The Library’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) as applied to local governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles.  The most significant accounting principles used by 
the Library are discussed below. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The accompanying financial statements comply with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14, 
The Financial Reporting Entity, in that the financial statements include all organizations, activities, 
and functions that comprise the Library.  Component units are legally separate entities for which 
the Library (the primary entity) is financially accountable.  Financial accountability is defined as 
the ability to appoint a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and either (1) the 
Library’s ability to impose its will over the organization or (2) the potential that the organization 
will provide a financial benefit to, or impose a financial burden on, the Library.  Using these criteria, 
the Library has no component units.  In addition, the Library is not included as a component unit 
in any other governmental reporting entity as defined by GASB pronouncements. 
 
B. Basic Financial Statements – Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The Library’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Library as 
a whole) and fund (reporting the Library’s major funds) financial statements.  Both the 
government-wide and fund financial statements categorize all of the primary activities of the 
Library as governmental activities.  The Library does not have any business-type activities. 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column is 
presented on a consolidated basis, and is reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, 
which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long- term debt and obligations.  
The Library’s net position is reported in three parts – net investment in capital assets; restricted 
net position; and unrestricted net position.  The Library first utilizes restricted resources to finance 
qualifying activities. 
 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the 
Library’s functions.  The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property 
taxes, personal property replacement taxes, unassigned investment earnings, other income, etc.).  
The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program 
revenues and operating grants.  Program revenues must be directly associated with the function 
(general government and library operations).  Operating grants include operating specific grants 
and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects 
capital specific grants.  The Library received no capital grants during the year ended June 30, 
2017. 
 
The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenues (property taxes, personal 
property replacement taxes, unassigned investment earnings, other income, etc.).



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 15 

The Library does not allocate indirect costs. 
 
The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Library as an entity and the change 
in the Library’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. 
 
C. Basic Financial Statements – Fund Financial Statements 
 
The financial transactions of the Library are reported in individual funds in the fund financial 
statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.  The 
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. 
 
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds.  GASB Statement No. 34 sets 
forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures of all 
governmental funds) for the determination of major funds.  The Library electively made all funds 
major. 
 
The following fund types are used by the Library: 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses and balances 
of financial resources) rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of the 
governmental funds of the Library: 
 
General Fund – The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Library.  It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Grant and Gift Fund – The Grant and Gift Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the 
proceeds from specific revenue sources that are designated for specific purposes. 
 
Special Reserve Fund – The Special Reserve Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for 
the accumulation of funds to be used for building or land acquisition, building expansion, and/or 
to furnish and equip a library building. 
 
D. Basis of Accounting 
 
Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  It relates to the timing of the 
measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
 
1. Accrual 
 
The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements are presented on the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Property tax revenues are recognized in the period for which levied.  
Other nonexchange revenues, including governmental revenues and grants, are reported when 
all eligibility requirements are met.  Fees and charges and other exchange revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
2. Modified Accrual 
 
The governmental funds’ financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when 
susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.  “Available” means collectible within  



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 16 

the current period or within 60 days after year-end.  Property tax revenues are recognized in the 
period for which levied provided they are also available.  Intergovernmental revenues and grants 
are recognized when all eligibility requirements are met and the revenues are available.  
Expenditures are recognized when the related liability is incurred.  The exception to this general 
rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when 
due. 
 
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Separate bank accounts are not maintained for all Library funds.  Instead, the funds maintain their 
cash balances in a money market account, with accounting records being maintained to show the 
portion of the common bank account balance attributable to each participating fund. 
 
No Library fund had a cash overdraft at June 30, 2017. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
F. Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
G. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $1,000 or more are reported at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Contributed assets are reported at fair market value 
as of the date of donation.  Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly 
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. 
 
Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 
 
Depreciation on all assets is provided on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful 
lives: 
 
Building 10-50 years

Equipment & Furnishings 5-20 years

Collection 4-10 years  
 
H. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets and liabilities, the Balance Sheet and Statement of Net Position will 
sometimes report separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources.  Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period and, therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resource until then.  
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and, therefore, will not be recognized as an inflow of resource until that time. 
 
I. Compensated Absences 
 
The Library accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and personal leave when earned by the 
employee.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 17 

J. Governmental Fund Balances 
 
Governmental fund balances are divided between nonspendable and spendable. 
 
Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected 
to be converted to cash, or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact. 
 
The spendable fund balances are arranged in a hierarchy based on spending constraints. 
 
Restricted – Restricted fund balances are restricted when constraints are placed on the use by 
either (a) external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
(b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed – Committed fund balances are amounts that can only be used for specific purposes 
as a result of constraints of the Board of Trustees.  Committed amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the Board of Trustees removes those constraints by taking the same type 
of action (e.g. legislation, resolution, ordinance).  Committed fund balances differ from restricted 
balances because the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional 
provisions, or enabling legislation. 
 
Assigned – Assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the Library’s intent to 
be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.  Intent is expressed by an 
appointed body (e.g. a budget or finance committee) or official to which the Board of Trustees has 
delegated the authority to assign, modify, or rescind amounts to be used for specific purposes.  
Pursuant to resolution 2010/2011-3 by the Board of Trustees, the Executive Director has been 
delegated this authority. 
 
Assigned fund balances also include (a) all remaining amounts that are reported in governmental 
funds (other than the General Fund) that are not classified as nonspendable, restricted, or 
committed, and (b) amounts in the General Fund that are intended to be used for a specific 
purpose.  Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital 
projects, or debt service fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their 
fund type. 
 
Assignment within the General Fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a 
specific purpose that is narrower than the general purpose of the Library itself. 
 
Unassigned – Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund.  This 
classification represents the General Fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds, 
and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General 
Fund. 
 
The Library permits funds to be expended in the following order:  Restricted, Committed, 
Assigned, and Unassigned. 
 
K. Property Tax Revenue 
 
The Library’s property tax is levied each calendar year on all taxable real property located in the 
Library’s district on or before the last Tuesday in December.  The 2016 levy was passed by the 
Board on October 18, 2016.  Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of 
January 1 of the calendar year they are for and are payable in two installments early in June and 
early in September of the following calendar year.  The Library receives significant distributions 
of tax receipts approximately one month after these dates.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 18 

L. Expenditures 
 
Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.  Expendable supplies held 
for the Library’s use are reported as expense in the period when purchased, rather than in the 
period when used. 
 
M. Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those 
estimates. 
 
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS 
 
The Library is allowed to invest in securities as authorized by the Illinois Compiled Statutes, 
Chapter 30, Sections 235/2 and 235/6. 
 
Deposits 
 
Custodial Credit Risk.  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Library’s deposits may not be returned to it.  The Library’s policy is to have deposits secured by 
collateral valued at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount of the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation insurance (FDIC).  The Library’s Board of Trustees approves and 
designates authorized depository institutions.  As of June 30, 2017, none of the Library’s bank 
balance of $3,751,458 was exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 
 
NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
The Library categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. 
 
The Library had no fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017. 
 
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 19 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017

Governmental Activities:

 Capital Assets not being depreciated:

  Land 1,245,836$      -$                -$                1,245,836$      

  Fine Art 18,600             -                  -                  18,600             

 Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 1,264,436$      -$                -$                1,264,436$      

 Other Capital Assets:

  Building 4,292,676$      67,215$           -$                4,359,891$      

  Parking Lot 350,141           -                  -                  350,141           

  Landscaping 14,653 -                  -                  14,653             

  Equipment and Furnishings 1,294,197 146,518           33,779             1,406,936        

  Collection 2,889,490 322,224           308,594           2,903,120        

 Total Other Capital Assets at Historical Cost 8,841,157$      535,957$         342,373$         9,034,741$      

 Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

  Building 1,189,812$      112,251$         -$                1,302,063$      

  Parking Lot 77,143             17,507             -                  94,650             

  Landscaping 3,840               732                  -                  4,572               

  Equipment and Furnishings 753,276           109,334           33,779             828,831           

  Collection 1,216,028        303,265           285,043           1,234,250        

 Total Accumulated Depreciation 3,240,099$      543,089$         318,822$         3,464,366$      

 Other Capital Assets, Net 5,601,058$      (7,132)$           23,551$           5,570,375$      

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 6,865,494$      (7,132)$           23,551$           6,834,811$      

 
Depreciation expense charged to library operations was $543,089 for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. 
 
NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM LIABILITY ACTIVITY 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2016 Additions Retirements June 30, 2017

Governmental Activities:

Other Long-Term Obligations

  Compensated Absences 43,385$           4,895$             -$                48,280$            

  Net Pension Liability - IMRF 1,151,562        94,895             1,246,457         

1,194,947$      99,790$           -$                1,294,737$       

 
NOTE 6 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCE 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the General Fund has a deficit fund balance of $95,348. 
 
NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES  
 
Property taxes receivable and unavailable revenue recorded in these financial statements are 
from the 2016 tax levy.  The unavailable revenue is 100% of the 2016 tax levy.  These taxes are 
unavailable as only a portion of the taxes (approximately 50%) are collected before the end of the 
fiscal year and the Library does not consider the amounts to be available and does not budget for 
their use in fiscal year 2017.  The Library has determined that 100% of the amounts collected for 
the 2015 levy are allocable for use in fiscal year 2017.  Therefore, 100% of the amounts collected 
for the 2015 levy ($3,173,266) are recorded in these financial statements as property taxes 
revenue.  A summary of the assessed valuations and extensions for tax years 2016, 2015, and 
2014 are as follows:



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 20 

Assessed Valuation

Rate Extension Rate Extension Rate Extension

General 0.3536 3,180,653$      0.3817 3,180,652$      0.3840 3,180,646$      

2016

$899,541,636 $833,320,832

2015 2014

$828,373,161

 
NOTE 8 - OVEREXPENDITURE OF BUDGET 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, no fund had expenditures that exceeded the budget. 
 
NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS 
 
A. Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Library’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and 
disability benefits, post-retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries.  The Library’s plan is managed by the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), 
the administrator of a multi-employer public pension fund.  A summary of IMRF’s pension 
benefits is provided in the “Benefits Provided” section of this document.  Details of all benefits 
are available from IMRF.  Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed 
by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements, detailed information 
about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position, and required supplementary information.  The 
report is available for download at www.imrf.org. 
  
Benefits Provided 
 
IMRF has three benefit plans.  The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the Regular Plan 
(RP).  The Sheriff’s Law Enforcemen Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and 
selected police chiefs.  Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials 
elected prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date). 
 
All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers.  Employees hired before January 1, 2011 are eligible 
for Tier 1 benefits.  Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight 
years of qualifying service credit.  Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or 
after age 60 (at full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement 
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for 
the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a 
maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings 
during any consecutive 48 months within the last ten years of service, divided by 48.  Under Tier 
1, the pension is increased by 3% of the original amount on January 1 every year after retirement. 
 
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011 are eligible for Tier 2 benefits.  For Tier 2 
employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service.  Participating employees who retire 
at age 62 (at reduced benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are 
entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-
2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of 
service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings.  Final rate of 
earnings is the highest total earnings during any 96 consecutive months within the last ten years 
of service, divided by 96.  Under Tier 2, the pension is increased on January 1 every year after 
retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of: 
 
 3% of the original pension amount, or 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 21 

 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount. 
  
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
All appointed employees of a participating employer who are employed in a position normally 
requiring 600 hours (1,000 hours for certain employees hired after 1981) or more of work in a 
year are required to participate.  As of December 31, 2016, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 
 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 19

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 20

Active plan members 40

Total 79

 
Contributions 
 
As set by statute, the Library’s Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.5% of their 
annual covered salary.  The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in 
addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees.  The 
Library’s annual contribution rate for calendar year 2016 was 11.61%.  For the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017, the Library contributed $183,508 to the Plan.  The Library also contributes for 
disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled 
at the IMRF level.  Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by IMRF’s Board of 
Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute. 
 
Net Pension Liability 
 
The components of the net pension liability of the IMRF as of December 31, 2016, calculated in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, were as follows: 
 
Total Pension Liability 5,417,660$      

IMRF Fiduciary Net Position 4,171,203        

Library's Net Pension Liability 1,246,457$      

IMRF Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of the Total Pension Liability 76.99%  
 
See the Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios in the 
Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the financial statements for additional 
information related to the funded status of the Plan. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of 
December 31, 2016 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 22 

Assumptions

  Inflation 2.75%

  Salary Increases 3.75% - 14.50% including inflation

  Interest Rate 7.50%

Asset Valuation Method Market Value of Assets

Projected Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that

are specific to the type of eligibility

condition. Last updated for the 2014

valuation according to an experience

study from years 2011 to 2013.

 
The IMRF-specific rates for Mortality (for non-disabled retirees) were developed from the RP-
2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF 
experience.  For Disabled Retirees, an IMRF-specific mortality table was used with fully 
generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2014).  The IMRF-specific rates were 
developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table, applying the same adjustments 
that were applied for non-disabled lives.  For active members, an IMRF-specific mortality table 
was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2014).  The IMRF-specific 
rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to match 
current IMRF experience. 
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and 
adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table as of December 31, 2016: 
 

Target Projected 

Asset Class Allocation Return

Equities 38.0% 6.85%

International Equities 17.0% 6.75%

Fixed Income 27.0% 3.00%

Real Estate 8.0% 5.75%

Alternatives 9.0%

  Private Equity 7.35%

  Hedge Funds 5.25%

  Commodities 2.65%

Cash 1.0% 2.25%

100.0%

 
Single Discount Rate 
 
The projection of cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the Plan 
members’ contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer 
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined 
contribution rates and the member rate.  The Single Discount Rate reflects: 
 
1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during the period in which 

the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 23 

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds 
with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the 
measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with the long-term expected 
rate of return are not met).  

 
For the purpose of this discount rate, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 
7.50%; the municipal bond rate is 3.78%; and resulting single discount rate is 7.50%. 
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 

Total Plan Net

Pension Fiduciary Position

Liability Net Position Liability

(A) (B) (A)-(B)

Balances at December 31, 2015 4,941,352$      3,789,790$      1,151,562$      

Changes for the year:

    Service Cost 172,857$         -$                172,857$         

    Interest on the Total Pension Liability 370,239           -                  370,239           

    Changes of Benefit Terms -                  -                  -                  

    Differences Between Expected and Actual -                  

        Experience of the Total Pension Liability 98,135             -                  98,135             

    Changes of Assumptions (22,040)           -                  (22,040)           

    Contributions - Employer -                  179,311           (179,311)         

    Contributions - Employee -                  69,501             (69,501)           

    Net Investment Income -                  259,968           (259,968)         

    Benefit Payments, including Refunds -                  

        of Employee Contributions (142,883)         (142,883)         -                  

    Other (Net Transfer) -                  15,516             (15,516)           

    Net Changes 476,308$         381,413$         94,895$           

Balances at December 31, 2016 5,417,660$      4,171,203$      1,246,457$      

 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of 
7.50%, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a single 
Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher: 
 

Current

1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher

6.50% 7.50% 8.50%

Net Pension Liability 2,039,977$     1,246,457$     595,198$       
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Library recognized pension expense of $308,795.  At 
June 30, 2017, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 24 

Outflows Inflows Net Outflows

Expense in Future Periods of Resources of Resources of Resources

   Differences between expected

     and actual experience 131,184$         6,492$             124,692$         

   Assumption changes 78,512             17,476             61,036             

   Net difference between projected and

     actual earnings on pension investments 198,821           -                  198,821           

Total deferred amounts to be recognized

   in pension expense in future periods 408,517$         23,968$           384,549$         

Pension contributions made subsequent

   to the measurement date 90,968             -                  90,968             

Total deferred amounts related to pensions 499,485$         23,968$           475,517$         

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Net Deferred

Year Ending Outflows of

December 31 Resources

2017 139,504$        

2018 135,296          

2019 90,922            

2020 18,827            

384,549$        

 
B. Social Security 
 
Employees not qualifying for coverage under the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund are 
considered “non-participating employees.”  These employees and those qualifying for coverage 
under the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund are covered under social security.  The Library paid 
the total required contribution for the current fiscal year. 
 
NOTE 10 - INTERFUND LOANS 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, there was an interfund loan between the General 
Fund and Special Reserve Fund used to fund the General Fund before property taxes were 
received.  This loan will be paid back in fiscal year 2018. 
 

 From  To Amount

Special Reserve Fund General Fund 550,000$         

 
NOTE 11 - OPERATING LEASE 
 
The Library entered into an operating lease in fiscal year 2016 with Today’s Business Solutions, 
Inc. for printing software and three towers. 
 
Annual requirements to cover outstanding lease agreements at June 30, 2017 are: 
 
Year Ending June 30 Total Payments

2018 3,220$             

2019 3,220               

2020 3,220               

2021 3,220               

2022-2026 270                  

13,150$           
 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Page 25 

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Library is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
 
The Library purchases commercial insurance to handle these risks of loss.  During fiscal year 
2017, there was no significant reduction in insurance coverage for any category.  Settled claims 
resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 
 
The Library is insured under a retrospectively-rated policy for workers’ compensation coverage.  
Whereas, the initial premium may be adjusted based on actual experience.  Adjustments in 
premiums are recorded when paid or received.  During the year ended June 30, 2017, there were 
no significant adjustments in premiums based on actual experience. 
 
NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Library is not aware of any pending litigation or potential nondisclosed liabilities that 
management believes would have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



6/30/2017 * 6/30/2016 * 6/30/2015 *
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
  Service Cost 172,857$      167,731$      169,550$      
  Interest on the Total Pension Liability 370,239        335,182        295,518        
  Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 98,135          90,749          (16,836)         
  Changes in Assumptions (22,040)         6,836            193,145        
  Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (142,883)       (112,637)       (97,231)         
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 476,308$      487,861$      544,146$      

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 4,941,352     4,453,491     3,909,345     

Total Pension Liability - Ending 5,417,660$   4,941,352$   4,453,491$   

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
  Contributions - Employer 179,311$      174,334$      156,868$      
  Contributions - Employee 69,501          79,434          64,762          
  Net Investment Income 259,968        18,808          208,603        
  Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (142,883)       (112,637)       (97,231)         
  Other (Net Transfers) 15,516          (61,120)         449               
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 381,413$      98,819$        333,451$      

Plan Net Position - Beginning 3,789,790     3,690,971     3,357,520     

Plan Net Position - Ending 4,171,203$   3,789,790$   3,690,971$   

District's Net Pension Liability 1,246,457$  1,151,562$   762,520$     

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage
  of the Total Pension Liability 76.99% 76.70% 82.88%

Covered-Employee Payroll 1,544,455$   1,495,144$   1,447,866$   

Employer's Net Pension Liability as a percentage
  of Covered-Valuation Payroll 80.71% 77.02% 52.67%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION
LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

JUNE 30, 2017

* This information presented is based on the actuarial valuation performed as of the December 31 year end prior to
the fiscal year end listed above.

Page 26
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



6/30/2017 * 6/30/2016 * 6/30/2015 *

Actuarially Determined Contribution 179,311$      174,334$      157,817$      

Contributions in relation to Actuarially
 Determined Contribution 179,311        174,334        156,868        

Contribution deficiency/(excess) -$             -$              949$            

Covered-Employee Payroll 1,544,455$   1,495,144$   1,447,866$   

Contributions as a percentage of 
 Covered-Employee Payroll 11.61% 11.66% 10.90%

Notes to Schedule:

Actuarial Method and Assumptions Used on the Calculation of the 2016 Contribution Rate *

Investment Rate of Return:  7.50%

Retirement Age: Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility condition; last updated
for the 2014 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period 2011 to 2013.

Mortality: RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Mortality Table, adjusted to match current IMRF experience. For
disabled lives, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base
year 2012). The IMRF-specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table,
applying the same adjustments that were applied for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMRF-specific
mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2014). The IMRF specific
rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF
experience.

*Based on Valuation Assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation; note two year lag
between valuation and rate setting.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a
full ten-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

Asset Valuation Method:  5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor

Price Inflation:  2.75%, approximate; No explicit price inflation assumption is used in this valuation.

Salary Increases:  3.75% to 14.50%, including inflation

Wage Growth:  3.5%

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION
JUNE 30, 2017

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 each year, which are 12 months prior
to the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.   

Amortization Method:  Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining Amortization Period:  27-year closed period

Actuarial Cost Method:  Aggregate entry age = normal

Page 27
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



Budgeted
Amounts
Original Actual

and Final Amounts
REVENUES

Property Taxes 3,180,652$   3,173,266$   
Annexation Impact Fees 1,000            -               
Fines 55,000          50,314
Interest 5,000            597               
Photocopier Income 17,000          16,088          
Program Fees/Miscellaneous Fees 5,200            3,055
Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 17,000          19,625          
Meeting Room Fees 1,000            935               
Lost or Damaged Materials 6,000            3,151            
Dividends 500               329               
Collection Agency Fees 1,000            290
Other Income 25,000          4,436

TOTAL REVENUES 3,314,352$   3,272,086$   

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government
Professional Services 44,500$        25,797$        
Printing, Publications and Postage 67,000          54,122

111,500$      79,919$        
Library Operations

Utilities 51,500$        41,351$        
Contracted Services 63,000          43,470
Catalog and Network 113,000        97,810
Personnel Expense 2,426,000     2,306,717     
Miscellaneous Operating Expenses 109,200        88,783

2,762,700$   2,578,131$   

Total Current 2,874,200$   2,658,050$   

Capital Outlay
Materials and Supplies 527,750$      507,858$      
Library Furnishings 35,000          13,274
Library Equipment 70,000          2,390            
Small Equipment 10,000          -               
Additional Capital Projects 320,000        222,270

962,750$      745,792$      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,836,950$   3,403,842$   

EXCESS OR (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (522,598)$     (131,756)$     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Interfund Transfers (800,000)       -               

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,322,598)$  (131,756)$     

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2016 36,408          36,408          

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2017 (1,286,190)$ (95,348)$       

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

Page 28
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



Budgeted
Amounts
Original Actual

and Final Amounts
REVENUES

Interest 2,500$          183$             
Gifts and Donations 20,000          17,320
Per Capita Grant 84,893          32,393          
Miscellaneous Grants 50,000          -                

TOTAL REVENUES 157,393$      49,896$        

EXPENDITURES
Current

Library Operations
Operating Fund Gifts 448,381$      13,662$        

Capital Outlay 32,393          24,363          
Miscellaneous Grants 25,000          -                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 505,774$      38,025$        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (348,381)$     11,871$        

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2016 482,237        437,714        

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2017 133,856$     449,585$     

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GRANT AND GIFT FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Page 29
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report



 

Page 30 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

JUNE 30, 2017 
 
 
NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY PROCESS 
 
Annual budgets are legally adopted and separately reported for all funds of the Library.  The 
budget was passed on October 18, 2016.  The Library follows these procedures in establishing 
the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
 
1. The Library Director requests input on the needs of the different departments of the Library. 
 
2. The Library Director uses this input to prepare a preliminary budget. 
 
3. The staff and Library Director then go over the preliminary budget and make any necessary 

adjustments. 
 
4. The revised budget is then submitted to the budget committee, who goes over it and makes 

any changes with the Library Director. 
 
5. The budget is then presented to and reviewed by the Board at a public hearing. 
 
NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2017, no fund presented as Required Supplementary Information 
had expenditures that exceeded the budget. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 



Budgeted
Amounts
Original Actual

and Final Amounts
REVENUES

Annexation Impact Fees -$              4,487$          
Developer Fees 25,000          54,188          
Interest 3,000            667               
Other Income 2,000            -                
Gifts and Donations 25,000          -                

TOTAL REVENUES 55,000$        59,342$        

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 150,000$      -$              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 150,000$      -$              

EXCESS OR (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (95,000)$       59,342$        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Interfund Transfers 800,000        -                

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 705,000$      59,342$        

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2016 1,721,585     1,747,456     

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2017 2,426,585$  1,806,798$   

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL RESERVE FUND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Page 31
See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report


















	01 Agenda
	02 Board Min 112117
	03 Financials November 2017
	04 Communications
	05 Librarians Report
	06 Exec minutes 102417
	07 2018 Per Capita application; 2016 Expenditures
	08 Sexual Harassment
	09 MPLD FY 2016-2017 Audit
	10 Articles



